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Remarks by His Majesty King Abdullah Il
at the Bloomberg New Economy Forum
16 November 2020

“Indeed, technology has the potential to boost our global path to recovery post-COVID.
One of the bright spots of our pandemic response has been seeing young Jordanians rise to the
occasion, and come up with innovative digital solutions, in record time, to bolster our resilience, in
healthcare, education, and e-commerce, while also offering services to others in the region”



His Majesty King Abdullah Il Ibn Al Hussein
King of the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan



Remarks by HRH Crown Prince Al Hussein bin Abdullah Il
at the Global Manufacturing and Industrialization Summit
September 05, 2020

“Our ICT sector quickly rose to the occasion during these challenging times, with our talented coders
and developers designing and creating infrastructures for remote learning, online shopping, and other
digital solutions”

His Royal Highness Crown Prince
Al Hussein bin Abdullah I



Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Jordan Telecommunications
Group (Orange Jordan), | am glad to welcome you to the 27th annual
ordinary General Assembly meeting. We will review the performance
and the financial results for the year ending on December 31, 2021, and
we will discuss the board’s annual report compiled in accordance with
the provisions of the law and the principles of good governance, which
we always abide by. This report comprises the financial statements,
governance report and disclosures, as well as the business plan for the
year 2022.

The Information and Communications Technology (ICT) sector enables
other sectors to enhance performance and raise productivity, in addition
to supporting their efforts in dealing with the COVID-19 pandemic and
offering the measures and solutions needed to make people’s lives
safer and easier. During the periods of distance learning, Orange Jordan
played a leading role in enabling students to attend classes and interact,
utilizing the latest technologies, free of charge. The pandemic has
brought new, unprecedented needs for users that have transformed the
demand for ICT services. The capacity of the company’s networks and
our flexible strategy for running the networks allowed us to respond to
the newly developed needs rather swiftly.

Throughout 2021, Orange Jordan has sustained outstanding
performance. It has maintained the leading position amongst providers
of business solutions, access to the internet, via mobile, ADSL and
Fiber services at international standards with unmatched speeds in the
market. The company has achieved a balance between profitability and
the cost of high-quality services, leading to good financial results.
Despite the pandemic’s impact on the economy of Jordan and of all
countries in the world, Orange Jordan has successfully achieved a
total revenue amounting to JD 333,5 million by the end of 2021, and a
net income (after tax) amounting to JD 26,1 million. In parallel, Orange
Jordan maintained optimal operational performance through optimal use
of resources. Operational expenses amounted to JD 286,7 million. We
reaffirm the commitment to distributing dividends every year.

At times, challenges create opportunities. Therefore, Orange Jordan
has set realistic and adaptable strategies to address the challenges
confronting the sector in light of the repercussions of the pandemic during
the past two years. Our positive performance reflects the resilience of

our strategy and our capabilities, being the reference responsible digital
leader and the Kingdom'’s partner in digital transformation. The pandemic
has also provided a strong incentive to develop our strategy and to
deploy resources to address different circumstances with flexibility. All
in line with the company’s leading position in the national economy.

During 2021, the company continued to develop infrastructure in
accordance with the best international standards; it has expanded
investments in networks and enhanced services to protect leadership
in the market by offering high-quality internet services through the
advanced Fiber technology to both individuals and businesses. The
company also remains the exclusive provider of 4G+ services.

We have a clear vision that includes empowering productive sectors,
individuals, and society at large. We are participating in spreading digital
culture, enhancing education and training outcomes in line with the digital
transformation requirements and market needs. We have supported the
youth in developing and growing their entrepreneurial projects in various
digital fields, including our support to talented programmers, through
free training, to help them get employed. A total of 100 males and
females have graduated from the “Coding Academy by Orange”, 80%
of whom got employed.

The year 2021 was a turning point in our social responsibility programs,
as we have expanded the number of beneficiaries of digital culture,
digital inclusion, and supporting entrepreneurship free of charge. This
year, we have embarked on implementing several programs as part of
‘Innovation Space’, co-funded with the European Union, and we are
excited to continue to fund our programs and support activities that
contribute to reducing unemployment and poverty rates in Jordan. We
will continue to work towards bridging the gap between academic skills
and the market digital need. We aim to increase our social responsibility
programs to a total of 50 projects by the end of 2022.

Our employees are the cornerstone of Orange Jordan’s success. The
executive management has made amazing efforts in training, capacity
building, as well as securing the safety of employees. We have provided
our staff and others the opportunity to get free vaccination at two centers;
one in Na’our and the other at Orange Digital Village in Abdali. We have
also adopted careful health and protective measures at our offices and
shops across the Kingdom in adherence to defense orders.

Finally, | would like to thank the board members, the executive committee
under the competent and commendable leadership of Chief Executive
Officer, Mr. Thierry Marigny, as well as all the executive directors
and employees, for their efforts and contributions to the company’s
continued success.

| would also like to extend my gratitude to the Ministry of Digital
Economy and Entrepreneurship, as well as the Telecommunications
Regulatory Commission for their role in regulating and developing the
Kingdom’s technological capacities. Due appreciation also goes to all
our shareholders for their confidence and ongoing support. | also thank
the Orange Group for continuing to instill and spread knowledge. | thank
our customers for their loyalty to our brand, Orange, and | reaffirm our
commitment to continue to provide the best to Jordanians as they
deserve the best always.

With kind regards and best wishes

Chairman of Board of Directors

Dear shareholders,

The past two years were tough and cast their shadow on all sectors. By relying
on our expertise, we were able to instantly adapt to the crisis while maintaining
excellence and business continuity. In this spirit, we welcomed 2021 with a
firm belief that the power of digital can overcome challenges and achieve more
progress, and that our role should be to help others around us access this power
to everyone’s benefit.

We achieved a hard balance between fulfilling digital customers’ growing
demands with high efficiency and speed, while sustaining a productive
environment at Orange Jordan and the community at large. We also supported
the government in face of the global pandemic through educational and health
initiatives, such as the establishment of a COVID vaccine station at the Orange
Digital Village, funded by the Orange Foundation, which provided its services to
82,000 beneficiaries.

We continue to dedicatedly serve our three million individual and business
customers with utmost quality, advancing digital transformation by expanding
our network in the governorates and diversifying Orange Money to offer more
financial inclusion services, while in parallel we designed a range of smart offers in
line with our commitment to provide our customers with market leading solutions.

Owing to this strategy, we succeeded in increasing our financial and operational
performance, achieving growth of our revenue by 5.2%, and EBITDAaL by 14%.

Because of the surging need for internet services, especially during the long
lockdowns and curfews, we faced a huge usage increase in both mobile and
fixed networks: the growth of traffic was more than 40% from 2020 to 2021. This
had an overall direct impact on our international internet bandwidth cost, but also
on our power consumption which grew by 8%.

This year upgrading our infrastructure and enriching subscribers’ experiences
remained a priority. We continued to enhance the quality of our mobile network
by introducing new “cloud air” and “split sectors” technologies, also by using
wisely granted temporary spectrum by TRC to cope with demand. On the
FTTH (Fiber to the Home) side, Orange Jordan continued investing extensively,
especially outside of Amman, to expand its network in Irbid, Zarga, Salt, Madaba
and Agaba, and reinforce our position as the “number one” operator in fiber
home connections in the Kingdom.

To complement our home broadband offer, we also launched the Smart Life
Solutions. This is a platform that helps our customers stay connected to their
home and monitor, remotely through an application, a range of smart electric
devices including surveillance cameras, alarm systems, doorbells, as well as
plugs that allow users to reduce their electricity consumption.

With the growth and importance of Wi-Fi networks, in light of the COVID
pandemic, our company launched the Wi-Fi Campus at its center in Naour where
we provide our employees with comprehensive training on all issues related to
home internet and Smart Life Solutions, to help them better understand and
improve our customers’ experiences.

Orange Jordan also continues to invest heavily in mobile finance and our e-wallet
service Orange Money. We believe mobile money to be the best means to
promote inclusive access to banking and financial services (payments, credit
and savings). In 2021, we achieved an increase of 78% to reach more than
381,000 registered customers. Using Orange Money, customers can manage all
their financial transactions: deposit cash in/out through our extensive network,
shop and withdraw money all around the world with our Visa card or use it to
shop online, pay through QR code, purchase electronic vouchers, and also refill
prepaid accounts and pay bills.

Orange Jordan remains the responsible digital leader in Jordan, because we are
investing strongly in the last three years to develop our skills, organization and
tools. During the last 12 months, we began our omnichannel transformation.

The first step was to redevelop our main digital assets (portal, e-shop, and
My Orange and Orange Money applications) and improve our digital customer
experience. We also developed more use cases for our RPA (Robot Process
Automation), Chatbots, and big data/ Al (Artificial intelligence), which are now an
integrated part of our current environment and customer journey.

These technologies are also feeding our B2B growth, which is particularly driven
by our ICT activity: connectivity and network management, hybrid cloud, 10T/
metering and cyber security. This growth had proven sustainable, even though
the local economy was impacted by COVID, including vital sectors such as
tourism which have been especially hit hard.

Establishing the Orange Foundation to enhance our social initiatives in the
Kingdom was one of our major highlights this year. This is an extension of the
Group’s global arm for philanthropy and social responsibility, which has remained
committed towards people and the environment for the past 30 years.

This year, Orange Jordan succeeded in expanding the number of centers and
beneficiaries of its comprehensive free digital programs through visionary
partnerships, represented by the Innovation Space project co-funded by the
European Union, and the Orange Digital Center (ODC), the eighth center in the
MENA region’s ODC network, funded by the German Development Cooperation
(GlZ).

These new digital centers encourage expertise and knowledge exchange
across countries to improve youth employability and promote innovation-based
entrepreneurship. Through various programs aimed at enhancing the digital
ecosystem in the Kingdom, including community digital centers which helped
bridge the digital divide for more than 3,000 young males and females, the Coding
Academy which achieved employment for 80% of its graduates, the FabLab
which trained over 50 creators, and the BIG by Orange growth accelerator which
supported more than 44 startups.

In parallel with our commitment towards the community, we complied with
the environmental commitment set by Orange Group through the Solar Farms
projects, which succeeded in reducing the company’s energy costs by around
65% during the first years of operating the project, and reducing the carbon
emissions from our operations by more than 100%, compared with the 2015
emissions. We expect to continue this decrease by an average of 30kt annually
over the next 20 years, in line with the Group’s goal to reach zero carbon
emissions by 2040.

As a responsible digital leader, we are also investing in our own digital
transformation. And by doing so, we are looking to empower our employees,
bring more agility to our processes, develop digital learning opportunities and
promote more collaboration. | am proud to say that our employee satisfaction is
rising every year, and that we again received Top Employer Certification.

In conclusion, | would like to extend my sincere appreciation to the members
of the Board of Directors for their efforts, represented by the Chairman, Dr.
Shabib Ammari, who was a key supporter, and to the executive management
that translated Orange Jordan’s strategies into realities. | also want to thank our
employees for their efforts and dedication, through which we achieved and will
maintain our leading position.

Finally, | promise that we will always remain a global company working in a local
spirit, exerting all our efforts to offer the best for Jordan and our subscribers.

Chief Executive Officer
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A tribute to a dear colleague: Orange group, especially Orange Jordan, has lost Mr. Taieb Belkahia, who passed away in 2021. He was
the Vice Chair of the Board of Directors. His contributions and accomplishments will not be forgotten, may his soul rest in peace.
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Financial Report

Digital Inclusion

Our social responsibility programs aim to equip youth, women,
and persons with disabilities with the tools needed for the labor
market and entrepreneurship.

The Board of Directors of Jordan Telecom Group (Orange Jordan) is delighted to present you with the annual report reflecting our
performance, business results for the financial year 2021. The report also highlights the continuous progress in the group’s performance
on all levels and its vital role in the development of information technology and communications in the Kingdom, which in turn enhances
social progress and contributes to the national economy and achieves feasible revenues for its shareholders.

Despite the unprecedented challenges posed by the COVID pandemic, Jordan Telecom Group has made several achievements in 2021,
including a significant growth in retail, through decisions that were taken based on its set goals, and utilizing the efficient internal processes
and advanced digital resources, starting from attracting customers to catering to their needs and aspirations.

In light of the modern digital revolution, the group enhanced its role in the individual market, namely in the wide array of mobile offers, to
ensure added value, in cooperation with a plethora of partners.

The group also increased its investments in broadband internet, to expand the coverage of fiber which grants users a very fast and reliable
internet experience, especially as people tend to rely more on advanced digital solutions, and as Orange continues to be a leader in
providing this service in the Kingdom.

Jordan Telecom Group continues its digital journey by adopting the latest technologies, by unleashing a world of possibilities and presenting
innovative technologies on a wider scale.

We hope to launch as soon as possible the 5th generation network in Jordan, as an extension to our digital legacy. This new technology
will accelerate digital transformation, and provide more space for loT, smart cities, and Industrial solutions.

In terms of finance although the pandemic brought long-term exceptional changes, we succeeded in increasing the group’s revenues and
profit. Thanks to the flexible and sustainable operational model we have adopted, Orange Jordan balanced between managing financing

needed for the additional costs in terms of capital and operations and maintaining profitability.

Presented below is a summary of the consolidated results for 2021 against 2020.



Consolidated income statement: Summary of consolidated balance sheet:

Revenues 333.5 317.1 5.2% Assets
Operating Expenses Total Current Assets 181.8 151.1 20.4%
Cost of services (119.0 (123.8) (3.9)% Property, and equipment 261.1 249.0 4.9%
Administrati 26.7 27.9 4.2)9
rinistration expenses ( ) ( ) (4-2)% Other non-current assets 257.6 290.4 (11.3)%
Selling and distribution expenses and provision for expected credit loss 42.7) (38.6) 10.6%
Total non-current assets 518.6 539.3 (3.8)%
Government revenue share (4.6) (4.1) 11.6%
o,
Business support fees (3.9) (3.3 0.0% Total assets 700.5 690.4 1.5%
Brand fees (4.6) (4.2) 8.3% Liabilities and equity
Depreciation and amortization (77.2) (75.4) 2.5% Total current liabilities 276.0 256.2 7.7%
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (6.5) (4.6) 42.0% Total non-current liabilities 143.1 160.2 (10.7)%
Depreciation of renewable energy lease assets (2.1) (2.1) 0.0% Total equity 281.4 274.0 2.7%
Total Operating expenses (286.7) (284.0) 1.0% Total liabilities and equity 700.5 690.4 1.5%
i 1 ()
IR ) (TP et — i Calculated variance may differ from the financials due to the rounding factor.
Operations margin 14.0% 10.4% 34.5% “The 2020 figures have been reclassified in order to conform to the presentations in 2021. Such reclassification does not affect previously
Renewable energy lease interest expense (3.0) (2.6) 15.2% reported profit or equity.
Lease interest expense (2.4) (2.5) 0.49)%
Net foreign exchange differences, finance costs and finance income (6.1) (6.9) (27.1)% )
Other Incorme 50 43 (54.3)% Summary of consolidated cash flow statement:
Profit before Income tax 38.2 25.3 50.8%
Income tax expense (12.1) (7.8) 54.1% Net cash from operating activities 108.0 93.2 15.8%
Profit for the year 26.1 17.5 49.3% Net cash used in investing activities (55.5) (48.7) 14.0%
Net cash used in financing activities (49.6) (41.0) 20.9%
Attripute e 26.1 17.5 49.3% Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash o8 35 (18.8)%
Equity holders of parent equivalent . : :0)70
Profit margin 7.8% 5.5% 41.9% ;
. Cash and cash equivalents 3.8 0.9 309.6%
Earnings per share 0.139 0.093 49.5%
- — The calculated variance may differ from the financials due to the rounding factor.
Weighted average number of shares (million shares) 187.5 187.5 -

The calculated variance may differ from the financials due to the rounding factor.
*The 2020 figures have been reclassified in order to conform to the presentations in 2021. Such reclassification does not affect previously
reported profit or equity.



Financial ratio analysis:

Profitability Ratios
Return on Total Assets (ROA)
Return on Total Equity
Liquidity Ratios
Current Ratio
Cash Ratio
Leverage Ratios
Debt- Equity Ratio
Interest- Bearing Debt ratio
Debt Ratio
Assets Coverage ratio
Assets Management Ratios
Assets Turnover ratio
Fixed Assets Turnover ratio
Capital Turnover ratio
Price (Growth) Ratios
Proposed dividends
Dividends pay-out ratio
Dividends Yield
Valuation Ratios
Book Value per Share
Market to Book ratio
Price-Earnings ratio

* Total Debt (Total Debt + Total Equity).
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3.8%
9.4%

0.66
0.21

149.0%
12.8%
59.8%

0.72

0.48
1.31
1.20

0.144
103.4%
6.7%

1.50
1.43
21.4

2.5%
6.4%

0.59
0.17

152.0%
16.7%
60.3%

0.68

0.46
1.28
1.16

0.10
107.1%
6.8%

1.46
1.01
14.7

48.5%
46.6%

12.6%
20.2%

(2.6)%

(23.4)%
(1.0)%
6.0%

4.7%
2.7%
3.3%

44.0%
(3.5)%
(1.1)%

2.7%
41.8%
45.6%

Revenues

Group’s consolidated revenues increased by 5.2%, achieving JD
333.5 million in 2021 compared to JD 317.1 million in 2020, mainly
due to the growth in fiber, mobile, and business services revenues.

Operating expenses

The term Operating Expenses means the cost of services,
administration expenses, seling and distribution expenses,
provision for expected credit loss, government revenue share,
business support fees, brand fees, depreciation, amortization,
depreciation of right of use assets, and depreciation of renewable
energy lease. The Group Operating Expenses increased by 1.0%
to reach JD 286.7 million in 2021 against JD 284.0 million in 2020.
The services’ cost kept decreasing by 3.9%, reaching JD 119.0
million in 2021 compared to JD 123.8 million in 2020, mainly due to
lower wholesale segment revenues (transit calls), less termination
cost, and lower energy costs.

Administrative expenses decreased by 4.2% to reach JD 26.7
million in 2021, compared to JD 27.9 million in 2020, mainly due to
lower donations.

Selling and distribution expenses and provision for expected
credit loss increased by 10.6%, reaching JD 42.7 million in 2021,
compared to JD 38.6 million in 2020 due to higher sales.
Government revenue share equals 10% of net revenue that Orange
mobile is required to pay to the Telecommunications Regulatory
Commission pursuant to the Mobile License Agreement.
Government revenue share reached JD 4.6 million in 2021,

333.5
3171

286.7

increased by 11.6% from 2020 due to higher mobile voice revenues.
Business support fees represent what the Group is required to pay
to Orange Group under the business support agreement. Business
support fees of the Group reached JD 3.3 million in 2021, the same
amount as in 2020.

Brand fees represent 1.6% of operating revenues that Jordan
Telecom Group is required to pay to Orange Group for using the
Orange brand in all Jordan Telecom Group subsidiaries. Brand fees
of the Group reached JD 4.6 million in 2021, compared to JD 4.2
million in 2020, with an increase of 8.3%.

Depreciation, amortization & impairment expenses increased by
2.5% to reach JD 77.2 million in 2021, compared to JD 75.4 million
in 2020.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets increased by 42.0% to reach JD
6.5 million in 2021, compared to JD 4.6 million in 2020.
Depreciation of renewable energy lease represents the recognized
liability toward solar farms project operator depreciated over the
agreement period.

Depreciation of renewable energy lease reached JD 2.1 million in
2021, same in 2020.

Profit from operations

Profit from operations consists of sales of services, less total
operating expenses, including depreciation and amortization, and
depreciation of renewable energy lease.

284.0

Revenue Operating expenses Profit from operations
2021 2020
(Million JD)
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Renewable energy lease interest expenses refer to interest
expenses on the Solar farms’ project lease liability. Renewable
energy lease interest expenses increased by 15.2% reached JD
3.0 million in 2021 compared to JD 2.6 million in 2020.

Lease interest expenses refer to interest expense on the lease
liabilities of Group premises and network site rentals for which
the rent term is higher than 12 months. Lease interest expenses
reached JD 2.4 million in 2021, lower than 2020 by 0.4%.

Net foreign exchange difference is generated from the Group’s
transactions in foreign currencies and translation of monetary
assets and liabilities. Finance costs consist of the interests and other
charges, which are paid on the Group’s financial indebtedness. On
the other hand, Finance income consists of income earned on cash
deposits in various currencies. The total cost of the three entries
decreased by 27.1% to reach JD 5.1 million in 2021, compared to
JD 6.9 million in 2020.

Other income consists of gains and losses on dispositions of fixed
assets and other miscellaneous income. Other income reached JD
2.0 million in 2021, compared to JD 4.3 million in 2020.

In 2021 the Group reported JD 12.1 million as income tax,
compared with JD 7.8 million in 2020.

Jordan Telecom Group generated JD 26.1 million as net profit after
tax for 2021, with an increase of 49.3%, compared to JD 17.5
million in 2020. This increase came mainly due to higher revenues
and a lower financing cost.

Net cash flows from Operating Activities, the source of liquidity,
increased by 15.8% to reach JD 108.0 million, compared to JD
93.2 million for 2020.

Net cash flows used in Investing reached JD 55.5 million in 2021,
compared to JD 48.7 million in 2020.

Net cash flows from Financing Activities reached JD 49.6 million
used in 2021, compared to JD 41.0 million used in 2020. The
increase is due to CBJ instructions regarding COVID-19 impact
and loan payments, which were postponed during 2020.

Cash and cash equivalent increased by 309.6% to reach JD 3.8
million in 2021 compared to JD 0.9 million in 2020.

Capital expenditures for Jordan Telecom Group reached JD 67.5
million at the end of 2021, compared with JD 60.5 million at the
end of 2020.

Jordan Telecom Group subscribers showed an increase of 5.7%
to reach 3.4 million lines in 2021, compared to 3.2 million lines in
2020, due to the increase in fiber, mobile, and Orange money base.

Jordan Telecom Group’s number of permanent contract employees
decreased by 1.8%, from 1,623 in 2020 to 1,594 in 2021. The
number of temporary contract employees increased by 13.3%,
from 98 in 2020 to 111 in 2021.

The Group’s efficiency indicator increase by 7.1% to reach JD 209
thousand revenue per permanent employee in 2021 compared to
195 thousand in 2020. The number of lines per employee reached
2,149 lines in 2021 compared to 1,996 lines in 2020, showing an
increase of 7.6% against 2020.

Group Business Segment analysis:
Presented below are the revenues for each business segment of the Group:
Orange fixed and Orange internet
Orange mobile
Renewable energy
Orange Money

Revenues

Orange fixed & Orange internet 207.0 203.6 1.7%
Mobile Communication 171.3 164.8 3.9%
Renewable energy 8.7 5.7 51.3%
Orange Money 1.0 0.4 148.1%
Intercompany (54.5) (57.5) (5.2)%
Total Revenues 333.5 317.1 5.2%

The calculated variance may differ from the financials due to the rounding factor.
Orange fixed services are the Group’s largest business segment despite the opening of the market to competition and entry of new fixed
broadband service providers, such as; fiber internet service.

Orange internet provides various services, such as; corporate internet leased lines, fixed internet service for residential and corporate,
web-hosting, and ICT services.

In addition to regular fixed calling services, Orange fixed provides high-speed fiber internet services for residential and corporate through
its fiber-optic network, which covers areas throughout the Kingdom with competitive prices and high quality.

Orange fixed and internet revenue increased by 1.7% in 2021 compared to 2020 due to the growth in fixed broadband and business
services revenues despite the drop-in wholesale international voice transit.

The Group’s mobile communication segment consists of the mobile communication products and services offered by Orange mobile,
which was registered in September 1999, to build a new, highly advanced mobile communication network to serve the Kingdom. Orange
mobile began commercial operations in September 2000 as the second provider of mobile services in Jordan.

Orange mobile witnessed an increase in revenues by 3.9%, compared to 2020. The increase was mainly due to the growth in voice, data,
and equipment revenues despite the drop in local mobile termination revenues.

Renewable energy operations started in 2019 following the production of electricity from the solar farms’ project.

Orange Money is a money transfer, payment, and financial services solution provided via an electronic account linked to an Orange mobile
number.

Orange Money revenues witnessed an increase in 2021, reaching JD 1.0 million, compared to JD 0.4 million in 2020.



Fixed telephone service + Fiber.

Mobile services (voice + data).

Internet services (ADSL, FTTH).

Wholesale services.

Services dedicated to enterprises (B2B) (managed network services and other advanced services such as Data Center, Cloud, or
Machine to Machine services).

Electronic Payment Services through Mobile Phone (Orange Money).

Development of Renewable Energy Projects.

Company’s locations and the number of employees in each area:
Headquarter offices, Abdali, The Boulevard, Black Iris Street, Entrance 8, P.O. Box 1689, Amman 11118 Jordan.

Disclosure Report for the Year 2021 Under o :
the Directive of the Security Commission e jj "

The amount of capital investment for Jordan Telecom in 2021 was JD 39,540,742 and JD 67,516,855 for Jordan Telecom Group.

All Subsidiaries Headquarter offices, Abdali, The Boulevard, Black Iris Street, Entrance 8, P.O. Box 1689, Amman 11118 Jordan

Petra Jordanian Mobile Telecommunications Co. Ltd.

GSM Operato 70,000,000 100% 235
(Orange Mobile) perator °
Jordan Data Communications Co. Ltd. (Orange Internet) ISP 750,000 100% 22
Di ion C for Digital Devel t of Data Ltd. Devel t of R bl
|m<.an3|onl ompany for Digital Development of Data evelopment o ‘enewa e 920000 100%* "
(e-Dimension) Energy Projects
Petra Mobile Payment Services Compan Electronic Payment Services
Y By o 2,000,000  100%** 31
(Orange Money) through Mobile Phone
Future Pioneers for Development and Initiatives Orange Foundation 15,000 100%***+* -

*The percentage of ownership for Dimension Company for Digital Development of Data Ltd. (e-Dimension) is 51% for Jordan
Telecommunications Company and 49% for Petra Jordanian Mobile Telecommunications Co.

** the employees for e-Dimensions’ & Future Pioneers for Development and Initiatives became a part of Jordan Telecommunications
Company’s staff.

*** Petra Mobile Payment Services Company is fully owned by Petra Jordanian Mobile Telecommunications Company.

Bridging the gap between education outcomes and labor market requirements = Fyture Pioneers for Development and Initiatives is fully owned by Petra Jordanian Mobile Telecommunications Company.

We contribute to empowering young people, to help them achieve their dreams, by embodying
the concept of "training for employment" which has become an umbrella for the free training
opportunities that we offer at Orange digital centers across the Kingdom, to supply the labor
market with trained talents capable of achieving excellence.




H.E. Dr. Shabib Ammari

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Date of birth: 22/2/1941

Dr. Shabib Ammari, the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Jordan
Telecom Group - Orange Jordan since January 2000 till now. He
was representing the Government of Jordan till 2006. Dr. Ammari
was repeatedly elected as the Chairman of the Board of Directors
representing Orange Group S.A. in the year 2006 and onward.

He was re-elected on Oct 24, 2018, for a new term of four years. A
Royal Decree included the appointment of His Excellency Dr. Shabib
Ammari as a member of the Senate (10/2013 — 10/2016). During
that period, he was Chairman of the Board of Orange Jordan. A
Royal Decree included Dr. Shabib Ammari as Minister of Industry
and Trade in His Majesty’s Government of H.E. Dr. Fayez Tarawneh
from 5/2012 to 10/2012. When the Cabinet resigned to pave the
road for Parliamentary elections, Dr. Ammari rejoined the Board of
Directors on 24/10/2012 and was elected as the Chairman of the
Board of Directors on that date and till now.

Dr. Ammari was Deputy Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the
Royal Scientific Society (H.R.H. Prince Al-Hassan Bin Talal Chair). He
was on the Board of Trustees of PSUT for seven years, a member of
the Higher Privatization Council, the Economic Dialogue Committee,
the Board of Trustees of King Hussein Bin Talal University, and the
Board of Directors of the Arab Jordan Investment Bank.

Dr. Ammari holds a Ph.D. in Economics (1980) from the University
of Southern California (USA), where he worked as a Senior Lecturer.
He also lectured in economics for students at Calif. State University
at Long Beach and California State Polytechnic University at
Pomona until 1985, after which he returned to Jordan and worked
in the private sector in the capacity of CEQ.

Mrs. Mireille EL Helou

Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors

Date of birth: 22/10/1969

Mrs. Mireille El Helou has a globe-spanning history of working in
the ICT industry.

She has worked in different positions during her 20 years at the
Orange Group, including Director of Sourcing and Supply Chain
Transformation between 2007 and 2010, Director of Orange
Middle East and Africa Sourcing & Supply Chain between 2010
and 2013 and Chief Business Market Officer and acting CEO of
Orange Telkom Kenya between 2013 and 2016.

From 2016 to 2019, she was the General Manager of Orange
Réunion Mayotte. She led the telco operations with a team of nearly
1,000 employees, launching the best 4G network, achieving the
high-speed FTTH network leadership and spearheading the digital
transformation.

More recently, she was the CEO of Orange Silicon Valley, leading a
multi-disciplinary team who leverage a unique understanding of the
local US innovation ecosystem and market to inform the strategy
and business of the Orange Group.

Prior to joining Orange, Mireille worked in sales and marketing for
more than nine years. She holds a Mechanical Engineering degree
from the American University of Beirut.

Mireille was appointed Senior Vice President MENA and Safety at
Orange Middle East and Africa on September 1, 2021.

Mr. Bisher Jardaneh

Member of the Board of Directors

Date of birth: 13/3/1961

Mr. Bisher Jardaneh is currently a member of the Board of Directors
of Orange Jordan. He is also the Executive Chairman of Arabtech
Jardaneh Group and the Chairman of Invest bank.

Mr. Jardaneh is a member of the Board of Trustees of Princess
Sumaya University for Technology, The Chairman of Taawon
Association (Geneva), Chairman of Arab Cultural Society (Al Raed
Al Arabi School), Board member of Jordan Strategy Forum to which
he is a founder and earlier two terms vice-chairman.

Formerly, he served as a member of the Royal committee of
“Kulluna Al Urdun,” the Royal Commission for Jordan’s Water
Strategy, the Executive Committee of the International Federation
of Consulting Engineers (FIDIC) / Geneva, the Social Security
Investment Fund (SSIF) board, Greater Amman Municipality’s
Council as the head of its Financial Committee. He also held the
position of the Chairman of the National Resources Investment and
Development Corporation, Vice Chairman of the Abdali Investment
and Development Company, the Chairman of the Abdali Boulevard
Company, the Chairman of Al Daman for Development Zones
Company, Chairman of Architects and Engineers Business Council
(AEBC) and a Member of Jordan’s National Agenda Committee.
He is also a member of the Young Presidents Organization (YPO),
Jordan Engineers Association, Jordan Businessmen Association
and Jordan European Business Association.

Mr. Jardaneh holds a bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering from
the University of llinois, and a master’s degree in Construction
Management from the University of California, Berkeley.

Mr. Jérome Hénique

Member of the Board of Directors

Date of birth: 27/11/1969

Mr. Jérbme Hénique has over 25 years of experience in the
ICT field, during which he worked in a diverse array of markets
spanning France, Spain, Senegal, and Jordan, cultivating an
extensive experience in the management of international teams,
P&L management, and telecom market development.

Prior to being appointed in 2018 as Deputy CEO - Chief Operating
Officer of Orange Middle East and Africa, he joined Orange Jordan as
CEO in September 2015. He worked as Deputy CEO of SONATEL
Group — an Orange subsidiary based in Dakar covering four
countries in West Africa — between 2010 and 2015. Where he also
served as Chairman and a member of several of the Group’s boards.
Before joining SONATEL, Mr. Hénique served as Group Chief
Marketing Officer at Orange between 2009 and 2010, leading the
international marketing team in Paris, London, and New York and
becoming a member of the Orange Executives Network.

He also acted as Chief Marketing Officer of the Consumer Market
at Orange France between 2006 and 2009. Where he led the
operator’'s marketing operations and successfully consolidated
broadband market share in France.

Mr. Hénique also worked as Chief Marketing Officer of Wanadoo
Spain from 2000 until 2003, managing the company’s nationwide
marketing operations, and as Chief Marketing Officer of Wanadoo
Group from 2003 to 2006.

Mr. Hénique has an MBA in Management of Network Business
from ENSPTT in Paris and a BA in Economics, Marketing, and
Finance from the Paris Institute of Political Studies. He followed as
well the 2021 Stanford Executive Program.

B. G. Dr. Eng. Hisham Khraisat

Member of the Board of Directors

Date of birth: 25/12/1965

B. G. Dr. Hisham Khraisat is a telecommunication engineer with
more than thirty years of experience in the operational and executive
management of telecommunications technologies and services,
with practical experience in network planning, network operations
management, and telecommunications policy development.

B. G. Dr. Hisham Khraisat is an active-duty Brigadier Generalin Jordan
Armed Forces, serving as Special Communication Commission
(SCC) General Director, in addition to serving as Chairman of the
Board of Trustees & Director General of the RCSSTEWA.

B. G. Dr. Hisham joined the Jordan Armed Forces in 1984, where
he has held many leadership and administrative positions during
his military career, such as; Royal Signal Corps (RSC) Director,
Commandant of A-Sharif Nasser C3 Military College, Signal
Assessor (Inspector & Evaluator) at the Inspector General’s Office,
Chief of Encryption Branch at RSC Directorate, Commandant of C4l
Center at RSC Directorate, Commander of GHQ Communication
level 3 Workshop, Supply and Procurement staff Officer at C3,
Instructor at A-Sharif Nasser C3 Military College. UN Military
Observer & Staff Officer as Communications & Training Officer.

B. G. Dr. Khraisat holds a Ph.D. degree in Management Philosophy
from the World Islamic Science and Education University (WISE), also
holds a master’s degree in computer science engineering / Embedded
Systems from Yarmouk University. His bachelor’s degree is in Electrical
Engineering / Telecommunications from Mu’tah University.

B. G. Dr. Khraisat is a member of the Board of Directors of
Jordan Telecom Group - Orange Jordan, in addition to holding
the position of Chairman of the Board of Trustees and Director
General of the Regional Center for Space Science and Technology
Education for Western Asia, and he was one of the commissioners
in Telecommunication Regulatory Commission (TRC). Also, he is
the Head of the Communication and Electronics Committee for
Standards & Metrology at the national level, and he is ahead of
many technical committees’ strategy at the JAF HQ level.

B. G. Dr. Khraisat has published many scientific and technical research
in the international magazines, in addition to publishing many papers
and books in Human Resources and Management fields.

Mr. Abdallah Abu Jamous

Member of the Board of Directors

Date of birth: 30/1/1977

Mr. Abdallah Abu Jamous,is a member of the Board of Directors
of Jordan Telecom Group - Orange since August 2017. Currently,
he serves as Director of Strategic Planning Department at the
Social Security Corporation. He previously occupied the Human
Resources Director post at the Social Security Corporation. And
prior to that he held the position of the Director of Strategic Planning
Department.

Mr. Abdallah Abu Jamous holds a master’s degree with honor in
Management Information Systems from Al Balga Applied University
and a bachelor’s degree in Accounting from Yarmouk University.
Additionally, he earned several professional certificates, including
Certified Project Management Professional Certification (PMP),
Certified Risk Management Professional Certification (PMI - RMP)
from the American Project Management Institute PMI, Certified
Strategic Planner (CSP) from the American Accredited Consultants
Institute, and Quality Assessment Certification (EFQM Assessor)
from the European Organization for Quality Management.

Mr. Abu Jamous was hamed as the Best Employee in the Hashemite
Kingdom of Jordan for the year 2012 (The Best Employee Award
issued from the Civil Service Bureau).

Mrs. Dorothée Vignalou

Member of the Board of Directors

Date of birth: 2/1/1970

Mrs. Dorothée Vignalou is currently a member of the Board of
Directors of Orange Jordan and the Deputy Chief Financial Officer
of Orange Middle East and Africa. Prior to that, she was the Head
of Central Controlling of Orange Business Services from Jan. 2014
— March 2018. She was the Head of Controlling Solutions and
Referential at Orange Group Finance from Sep. 2003 - Dec. 2013.
She previously held the position of Consultant then Project Manager
at France Telecom Finance Division from Sep. 1994 - Aug. 2008.
Mrs. Vignalou graduated from Sciences Po Paris with a master’s
degree in Economics & Finance Section in 1993.



The management is in charge of managing the day-to-day work of
Orange Jordan and its subsidiaries.

Mr. Thierry Marigny

Chief Executive Officer of Orange Jordan

Date of birth: 15/4/1963

With more than 30 years of experience inthe ICT sector, Thierry Marigny
has worked in a diverse array of global markets across Europe, Middle
East, and Africa, cultivating robust expertise in Global management,
marketing, strategic planning, and corporate communication. He is
currently the CEO of Orange Jordan since 2018, Marigny had deep
experience in the development of telecommunication operators. Most
recently, he served as the Deputy CEO of SONATELGroup — an
Orange subsidiary based in Dakar, covering five countries in West
Africa. In addition to his most recent tenure, he served as CEO of
Orange Tunisia, Deputy CEO of Cellis (Lebanon), Chief Marketing
Officer of Orange Belgium, Orange’s Global Brand Vice President,
Orange Vice President of Marketing for Mobile Services.

Among his other past experiences and achievements, he has a
strong understanding of the Digital Ecosystem, as he served as the
Founder and CEO of Cityneo: A Paris-based start-up focused on
mobile applications and location-based services.

Marigny holds a master’s degree in Marketing and Finance from
Dauphine University in Paris. He is also a graduate of the Institute
Mines-Télécom Business School in France, where he attained a
master’s degree in Telecommunications Management.

Mr. Raslan Deiranieh

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial and Strategy Officer

Date of Birth: 17/11/1963

Mr. Raslan Deiranieh is the Deputy Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial and Strategy Officer of Jordan Telecom Group — Orange
Jordan, In charge of Compliance & Ethnic and Network Information
Security. He joined Jordan Telecom in 1998 as a Treasury Director.
Before that, Mr. Deiranieh served as head of the Foreign Investments
Section at the Central Bank of Jordan.

Mr. Deiranieh is currently a Board Member in the Central Bank of
Jordan, a Board Member of the Faculty of Arts at the University
of Jordan, and a Board Member of JAMA (Jordan Association
of Management Accountants). He is also the Chairman of the
e-Dimension Company

He was previously a Board Member in Safwa Islamic Bank, a Board
Member of Jordan Data Communications Co, Chairman of Light
Speed Company based in Bahrain, and the Chairman of the Petra
Mobile Payment Service Co.

He has previously represented the Social Security Corporation
on the Board of Directors of Jordan Press Foundation (Al-Rai
Newspaper) and the Board of Jordan Steel Company.

Mr. Deiranieh holds a bachelor’s degree in Accounting and Computer
Science with honors from Al-Yarmouk University (1985) as well as
the award of Scientific Excellence from the same university, and the
Distinguished Graduates award. Mr. Deiranieh holds a master’s degree
in Accounting from the University of Jordan (1992) and has a certificate
of Orange Finance and Controlling from ESCP Business School (2008).

Eng. Sami Smeirat

Chief Enterprise Officer

Date of birth: 13/4/1971

Mr. Smeirat has held the position of CEO of Jordan Data
Communication Company Ltd. since 2007, in addition to his
position as the Chief Enterprise Officer that provides services of
telecommunications solutions (mobile, internet, and fixed) for the
public and private sectors in the Jordanian market. In 2003, he was
the Chief Executive Officer of Wanadoo, until it was re- branded to
Orange Internet.

He also led the exclusive partnership with Equant as their distributor
in Jordan, and the re-branding of Global One to Wanadoo. Prior to
that, he was the co-founder of Cyberia Jordan in 2001, in which
he worked as the deputy CEO and Chief Commercial Officer. He
also worked as the Corporate Sales Manager at Global One since
1996, before managing Consumer and Corporate Sales since
1999 and Teaching and Research Assistant at the University of
Jordan for two years. He also was a former board member of
Zara Investment Holding, as well as a former board member of
Lightspeed Communications (Bahrain).

Recently he was appointed as Representative of the Social Security
Corporation at the Board of the Jordan Phosphate Mines Company.
This new role is added to many leading roles that he holds and
continues to carry out successfully, including the chairman of Petra
Company for Mobile Payment Services, and being a member of
the Board of Directors of Cairo Amman Bank, the International
Data Center Authority (IDCA), the National Cyber Security Council
(representing the private sector), and Princess Sumaya University
for Technology’s Board of Trustees, also a board member of
Sodetel.

Mr. Smeirat holds a BSc in Electrical Engineering from the University
of Jordan and a master’s degree in Communications Engineering,
as well as an MBA in Business Administration from NYIT.

Eng. Waleed Al Doulat

Chief Wholesale Officer

Chief Information Technology & Networks Officer

Date of birth: 2/5/1966

Mr. Waleed Al Doulat has held the position of Chief Wholesale
Officer of Jordan Telecom Group - Orange Jordan since 2010,
from July 2016. Mr. Al-Doulat has been assigned the role of Chief
Information Technology & Networks Officer, in addition to his
current position as Chief Wholesale Officer.

In 1992, he joined the Jordan Telecom Group as an Operation and
Maintenance Transmission Engineer, where he worked his way up
to his current position.

Mr. Al-Doulat received his BSc degree in Electrical Engineering/
Telecommunications from the Jordan University of Science and
Technology (JUST) in 1989. Following his graduation, he worked at
the same University as a Teaching Assistant until late 1991.

Dr. Ibrahim Harb

Chief Legal, Regulatory, Sourcing and Supply Chain Officer
Chief Human Resources Officer

Date of Birth: 17/5/1961

Dr. lbrahim Harb has held the position of Chief Legal, Regulatory,
Sourcing, Supply Chain, and Human Resources Officer of Orange
since July 2020.

Prior to that, Dr. Harb was acting the Chief Human Resources
Officer of Orange Jordan, adding to Chief Legal, Regulatory,
Sourcing, Supply Chain Officer (March 2020- July 2020).

Prior to that, Dr. Harb was the Chief Legal, Regulatory, Sourcing,
and Supply Chain Officer of Orange Jordan (2017-2020).

Prior to that, Dr. Harb was the Chief Legal, Regulatory and Sourcing
Officer of Orange Jordan (2014 — 2017). He was the Chief Legal and
Regulatory Officer of Orange Jordan (2010 - 2014) and the Legal
and Regulatory Director of Orange Jordan (2005 - 2010). Before
that he had held in 2004 the position of Acting Human Resources
Officer at Jordan Telecom and was the Training Manager and the
Training Center Manager (1999 - 2004) at Jordan Telecom.

Dr. Ibrahim holds a Ph.D. in Communications Engineering.

Mrs. Naila Al Dawoud

Chief Consumer Market Officer

Date of Birth: 3/4/1968

Naila Al Dawoud has held the position of Chief Consumer Marketing
Officer since July 2017. Mrs. Al Dawoud has more than 27 years of
experience at Orange Jordan and Orange Group in the core disciplines
of the telecommunication and marketing sectors. Her career path took
a different turn after 12 years of experience at the IT sector to explore
new challenges in the commercial and marketing field.

Prior to becoming Chief Consumer Marketing Officer, Mrs. Al
Dawoud worked as Marketing Director for 7-years.

Before that, she occupied many managerial positions at Orange
Jordan and Orange France. In 2006, her experience was enriched
by managing multi ITN-Programs within Network Carrier & IT sector
at Orange Group in France.

Mrs. Al Dawoud holds a bachelor’s degree in computer science from
Yarmouk University. In addition, an Application Engineer Diploma
(Design, Communication, and Development) from Centre of the
International Cooperation for Computerization (CICC) — Tokyo, Japan.

Mr. Samer Al Haj

Chief Consumer Sales Officer

Date of Birth: 27/8/1976

Samer Al Haj has been appointed as Chief Consumer Sales Officer
on 1st of July 2017. Mr. Haj has more than 21 years of relevant
experience in the telco industry, during which he held a variety
of managerial positions that have enriched his experience in the
telecommunication sector.

Prior to being appointed as Chief Sales Consumer Officer, Mr. Al
Haj worked at Orange JO as the Sales Director for 6 years; he
previously occupied many managerial positions with Viva Bahrain
and Zain Jordan, through which his leadership and ability to develop
a successful business, set-up commercial operations, and develop
distribution strategies has been proven.

He holds a bachelor degree in Educational Sciences from University
of Jordan, in addition to Telecom Mini MBA from Telecoms
Academy.

Mr. Jallale Bassou

Deputy Chief Information Technology and Networks Officer
Date of Birth: 15/3/1974

Mr. Jallale Bassou joined Orange Jordan and the Executive
Committee (Excom) as the Deputy Chief Information and Network
officer in October 2019. He is in charge of the digital and data
factory, operations, budget controlling and operational efficiency
programs.

With over 10 years experience in key managerial positions such as
IT, network, engineering and operations,

Mr. Bassou is a trusted expert in greenfield operators and
transformation of existing telecom organization.

From 2015 to 2019, Mr. Bassou served as the Senior Director at
Orange Morocco leading the transformation of operations activities
and technical customers experience. Prior to that and from 2009,
he was a Director in charge of new roll out and technical operation
activities in Orange Tunisia. From 2002 to 2009, Mr. Bassou joined
Oreedoo Tunisia as an Engineering Manager to the IT Director
within the technical area. He had originally started his career as part
of the Orange Group’s subsidiaries in Europe and South America
Mr. Bassou is a graduate in Electronic and Telecommunication
Engineering from Nancy University in France.



Mr. Wilfried Yver

Chief Digital, Data, Innovation & Money Officer

Date of Birth: 21/2/1972

Mr. Wilfried Yver has over 20 vyears of experience in
telecommunications and digital services, and global marketing
and sales practice. He joined the Orange Group in 1998 and then
joined Orange Jordan in December 2020 as a Chief Digital, Data,
Innovation & Money Officer.

Previously Yver occupied several positions in Orange Innovation
— Orange Middle East and Africa (OMEA), Orange Wholesale, and
Orange Business services Divisions.

Wilfried Yver has vast international experience and knowledge and
was notably Vice President MVNO and VISP Business Line for
Orange Horizons, conducting international business developments
missions over 4-continents. He was also a Chief Marketing Officer
and Orange Money Chief Officer for Orange Mali and served as a
Chief Internet, B2B, and Wholesale officer for Orange Botswana.
Yver holds two master’s degrees; an MBA from Anderson College,
University of New Mexico, with a major in Finance and Strategic
Marketing, and a Master of Business from Normandy Management
School, focusing on International Business.

Eng. Rana Al Dababneh

Deputy Chief PR, CSR, and Corporate Communication Officer
Date of birth: 6/7/1979

Eng. Rana Al Dabaneh has more than 20 years of experience in
telecom and ICT, in areas of marketing, product development,
project management, public relations, corporate communication,
and sustainable social corporate responsibility.

She held many positions in Orange Jordan, as she was assigned
to oversee the outsourcing call center project at Orange Jordan
(Jordan Telecommunications at that time), in addition to partnerships
with public and private sectors for two years, and later the role of
Marketing Manager in the company’s internet provider (Wanadoo
at that time), which contributed to the integration of the ISP with
Jordan Telecom Group and its rebranding to Orange in 2007.
Eng. Al Dababneh joined the enterprise business unit to take over
the development of products such as corporate internet solutions,
fixed lines, mobiles, and integrated managed services, in addition
to operational marketing, until she became the Marketing Director
of the unit in 2009.

She was appointed Director of the Project and Performance
Management Office for the Group from 2012-2015, where she
assumed the responsibility of defining the company’s strategic
goals and ensuring their achievement, as well as managing the
governance and delivering the company’s projects.

In 2016, Eng. Al Dababneh was assigned to lead the Department
of Public Relations, Social Responsibility and Corporate
Communication in Orange Jordan, working under the direct
management of the CEO. In July 2021, she was appointed Deputy
Chief PR, CSR, and Corporate Communication Officer, where she
extensively manages public relations, corporate communication,
and the company’s image and brand, as well as the company’s
CSR programs that make a positive impact on the lives of more
than 20,000 beneficiaries. She is also a member of Orange Jordan’s
Executive Committee.

Before joining Orange Jordan, Eng. Al Dababneh worked as a
consultant in Philadelphia Consulting Group between 2001 and
2002. Eng. Al Dababneh holds a Bachelor's degree of Science
in Industrial Engineering from the University of Jordan, with a
minor specialization in Management, alongside many certificates
such as Board Member Certificate offered by the International
Finance Corporation from the Institute of Jordanian Directors,
Executive Marketing Program Certificate from INSEAD and Project
Management Professional Certificate from PMI.

Joint Investment Telecommunications Co. 95,624,999 51% 95,624,999 51%

Social Security Corporation 54,150,000 28.88% 54,150,000 28.88%
Noor Telecommunications Holding Company Limited 17,437,794 9.30% 17,437,794 9.30%
Total 167,212,793 89.18% 167,212,793 89.18%

After the exclusive rights termination on the 1st of January 2005, the TRC issued individual and class licenses for fixed line services to
several companies. Additionally, the mobile telecommunication service has affected the company’s market share in the local market.

The company’s share of the total domestic market:
Orange fixed services >90%

Orange mobile services 30-35%

Orange internet services  40-45%

The Jordan Telecom Group purchased more than 10% of the total purchases from:
Nokia Solutions and Networks Oy (25%)

There is no reliance on major local and/or external clients who make up 10% or more of total revenue.

Jordan Telecom does not enjoy any privileges and does not hold any patent. On the other hand, Jordan Telecom has the right to use the
brand name of “Orange.”

No decisions were issued by the Government, international organizations, or others, which have a material effect on the Group’s business,
products, or competitive ability. According to the license issued to it.

The Group complies with international quality standards and applies the following Quality standards:
- Data Center Uptime Tier lll Design Certificate.

- Data Center Uptime Tier Il Constructed Facility Certificate.

- 1SO 14644 Cleanroom data center standard certificate for three data centers with 9-certificates.
- 1SO 14001 Environmental Management standard Certificate.

- ISO/IEC 27001 Information Security Management standard compliance.

- I1SO 50001 - Energy Management Systems standard compliance.

- ANSI/TIA-942 Telecommunications Industry Association Standard compliance.

- EN50600 Data center facilities and infrastructures standard compliance.

- PCI DSS Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard compliance.

- ASHRAE American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning Engineers standard compliance.
- GEEIS (Gender Equality European & International Standard).

- COPC - Customer Operations Performance Center.

- 1SO 45001 -2017 Occupational health &safety.

- 1SO 14001 -2015 Environmental.

- EFQM Excellence Model - Recognized for Excellence(R4E) - 4-stars.
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9.a The organizational structure of Jordan Telecom Group:
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9 B. The number of employees and type of qualifications:
Jordan Petra Jordanian Mobile Jordan Data Petra Mobile Payment
qualification Telecom Tel. Com. Communication Co. Services Company
(Orange Fixed) (Orange Mobile) (Orange Internet) (Orange Money)

9 c.Training programs during 2021:

10. The risks to which Jordan Telecom Group is exposed:
Jordan Telecom Group faces risks of competition from mobile telecommunications and other telecom companies that serve fixed-line
services.

11. The achievements realized by the company:
The achievements were mentioned in Jordan Telecom Group results.

12. The operations of infrequent nature during 2021:
There is no financial impact for non-recurring transactions that occurred during the fiscal year, which are unrelated to the core activities
of the company.

13. The time series of profits, distributed dividends, shareholders’ equity, and shares prices issued by the
company for five years:

* Proposed dividend in 2021.
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14. The analysis of the financial position of Jordan Telecom Group:
The financial analysis was included in the consolidated financial and statistical highlights.

15. Future outlook:
This part is mentioned in “The future vision of the Group”.

16. The remuneration of the external auditor of the company and its subsidiaries during 2021:

Auditing remuneration (JD)
The Company
Ernst & Young Deloitte & Touche

17. The shares owned by the members of the Board of Directors and top management:
None of the members of the board of directors owned shares, except for H.E. Dr. Shabib Ammari — Chairman who owns (1) share and
Brigadier General Dr. Eng. Hisham Khraisat is a Member of the BOD and owns (375) shares.

None of the top management members owned shares or any company controlled, nor their relatives except for Mr. Raslan Deiranieh, who
owns (21,500) shares.

Statement of the members of the Legal Entities Board of Directors, their representatives, and the ownership of each one of them.

Status Position Nationalit No. of shares as | No. of shares as
y of 31/12/2021 of 31/12/2020
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18. The remunerations and rewards in 2021 for the members of the Board of Directors and for the top
management members were:

Committees’ : Annual BOD
No. | BOD : Transportation : Travel Total
remuneration remuneration 2020

*All amounts are paid to Orange Group.
**Remuneration, commissions, and mobility allowances were paid to the Social Security Corporation.
Number of Board meetings during 2021 (6).

Paid amount to top management:

o Distributed
Additional :
No. | Name Salary — EOS Transportation | Travel | Others Total
9 9 indemnity
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1 The General Trade Union of Workers in Public Services & Free Occupations 96,000
2 The Ministry of Education 33,350
3 Al Zarga Municipality 25,000
4 Ministry of information and communications technology 20,900
5 Greater Madaba Municipality 15,000
6 Al-Salt Club Sport Cultural 2,000
7 Saham Sport Club 2,000
8 Educational and humanity donations 1,250
9 Jordan Sport Federation for Companies & Establishments 967
10 The Ministry Of Health 646
Total 197,113

*The above amounts are the total donations, without including sponsorships.

There is a management agreement between Orange Jordan and Orange Group. Also, several agreements were signed between the
company and its subsidiaries in daily, normal business conduct.

There are no contracts, projects, or engagements entered into by the company with the Chairman of the Board of Directors, members of
the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, or any company employees or relatives thereof.

Responsible Digital Leader

Orange Jordan has reinforced its position as a responsible digital leader over a journey spanning more than
20 years. The company witnessed several milestones during 2021, such as enriching its digital solutions and
offerings to ensure the best service, the celebration of Jordan’s first centenary, the establishment of Orange
Jordan Foundation, to enhance the impact of the company’s social responsibility programs, in addition to the
launch of the Orange Digital Center.

Supporting National and Local Activities

Participating in various celebrations held on the Centenary across the Kingdom, including Ministry of Culture’s “Wa Tastamer Al
Maseera” song by Omar Al-Abdallat.

&~ |
“Zakatokom Hayati” campaign for the sixth consecutive year, providing donations to underprivileged .

King Hussein Cancer Center’s patients.
“Mujadedon” initiative, whereby the company donated food parcels and cash through Orange
Money wallets that were created for the beneficiaries.

Orange Jordan has continuously supported governmental efforts since the pandemic’s outbreak in 2020, and continued the following
efforts in 2021:

Funded by Orange Foundation, and in cooperation with the National Center for Security and Crisis Management and the Ministry of
Health, Orange Jordan Foundation established a vaccination station to support the National Vaccination Campaign, whereby 82,000
received the vaccine.

Offering free internet bundles to its subscribers upon receiving the first and/or second COVID vaccine doses, in addition to those who
received the two doses previously.

Supporting the medical staff in the Kingdom’s four field hospitals, by providing lines and devices, in coordination with the National
Center for Security and Crisis Management, and in cooperation with the Ministry of Health and the Ministry of Digital Economy and
Entrepreneurship.

Supporting the Jordan TV’s initiative to encourage citizens to take the COVID vaccine.

Sponsoring the Artificial Intelligence in Defense Technology and Cyber Security Exhibition and Conference (AIDTSEC 2021).

Telecom sponsor of “Towards Universal Health Coverage in Jordan 2021” conference.

Telecom sponsor of the seventh edition of HORECA Jordan.

Sponsoring the Ministry of Education’s honorary ceremony for teachers in appreciation of their efforts and impact on the lives of
students and society.

Continuing to support the Goodwill campaign implemented by the Jordanian Hashemite Fund for Human Development (JOHUD),
including the mobile clinic, to raise medical awareness and provide healthcare to the underprivileged across the Kingdom.

Supporting breast cancer awareness campaigns throughout October, including sponsoring the Solidarity March, organized by the
Telecommunications Regulatory Commission in cooperation with King Hussein Cancer Foundation, Mediterranean Basin Association
for Cancer Patients and Circles Center.

Honoring the Kingdom’s Tawijihi top achievers for the year 2021.

Signing an agreement to provide exclusive telecom sponsorship to the leagues of Jordan Basketball Federation.

Sponsoring the fourth Youth MUN Conference, organized by the Youth Model United Nations Club, in cooperation with Abdul Hameed
Shoman Foundation.

Offering the grand prize for the “Tabbakh Afandi” program on Roya TV, as a donation to the Jordan Hashemite Charity Organization, to
support its charitable efforts in the Gaza Strip.




Orange Jordan supports companies, pioneering ideas and innovation by giving youth the assistance they need to enhance the growth of
their startups and enable them to contribute to serving local communities.
Sponsoring SHERO conference, held under the patronage of HRH Princess Sumaya bint El Hassan as part of the Global Entrepreneurship
Week activities, aimed to shed light on Jordanian female entrepreneurs’ contributions.
Announcing the results of the “Jordanian Startups Landscape” study, supported by the European Union, which was launched by Int@j
and the StartupsJo Council on behalf of the “Innovation Space” project. I
The fifth local edition of Orange Social Venture Prize (OSVP) to encourage entrepreneurs and tech-based social impact projects. , 3 Ii:i l ‘
The telecom sponsor of the Internet of Things and Artificial Intelligence challenge.
Launching “Orange Al Startup Incubator” in partnership with the Innovative Startups and SMEs Fund and Princess Sumaya University
for Technology.
The graduation of five startups from season 8 of Orange Program for Business Innovation Startups’ Growth (BIG by Orange).
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h_m“f-_@‘f_Fh_‘ —" Offering the SignBook application across all Orange shops in the Kingdom to enable persons with hearing impairments.

e T p— - ey e
B v Qo Y et f A ——— - Sponsoring the media competition for the causes related to persons with disabilities launched by the Higher Council for the Rights
T — [T e [T
e A i Sl i ) B alg_ Y el of Persons with Disabilities under the patronage of the Council’s President, HRH Prince Mired Bin Raad, to spread awareness and
_-_u-_-l;-n;ﬁl;:—“ motivate media representatives to address disability issues from a human rights perspective.
1P 3 | - - - & -
W -_f-gp_ .,m.._ 2. "'_-r_;l.'c' = Supporting an art exhibition for the works of blind and visually impaired students held under the patronage of the company’s Chairman,
e - 2 - £ Dr. Shabib Ammari, on World Art Day.
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el e el Lo e e —— PP @ Continued support for the “Qaderoon” campaign to celebrate the success stories of persons with disabilities and improve inclusion
F e L] = = B ian = culture.
Bl el I Nl e s Supporting training in mobile phone maintenance for persons with hearing impairments, organized by Al-Nashmiya Arms Center.

Participating in Humanity and Inclusion Job Fair, which was held by Humanity and Inclusion in cooperation with the Ministry of Labor.

o ) Participating in honoring Top Tawijihi students with disabilities in the Kingdom.
Digital Empowerment & Inclusion

Signing a cooperation agreement with the German Development Cooperation (GlZ) in Jordan, through Labor Market Oriented Vocational
Education, Higher Education and Training program (MOVE-HET), to launch and support Orange Digital Center (ODC).

Concluding the training of two cohorts from the Orange Digital Center Club at the German Jordanian University and at Zarga Youth Club
in cooperation with the Ministry of Youth with the support of GIZ to provide youth with the necessary skills to enhance their employability
or launch their entrepreneurial projects.

Signing a cooperation agreement with the Ministry of Youth to establish digital centers co-funded by the EU across the Kingdom’s
governorates.

Inaugurating Orange Community Digital Center at Ma’an Youth Center, under the patronage of the Ministry of Youth, co-funded by the
EU, within the framework of the “Innovation Space” project, as part of a plan that includes two more centers with the Ministry in Shobak
and Deir Abi Seid.

Inaugurating Orange Community Digital Center at Kitteh Knowledge Station, with the patronage of the Ministry of Digital Economy and
Entrepreneurship, co-funded by the EU, within the “Innovation Space” program, as part of a plan that includes two more centers with
the Ministry in Thiban and the Hashemite University.

Establishing three new women digital centers in partnership with JOHUD, under the umbrella of the “Innovation Space” co-funded by
the EU and launching a training course at the existing five women digital centers affiliated with JOHUD, aiming to support and empower
women.

Celebrating International Women’s Day and announcing the winners of the Amazing Woman Award, within the framework of the
“Women Digital Center” program.

Signing an MOU with Huawei Jordan and launching the first training to enhance ICT skills in the Kingdom.

Collaborating with Ericsson to develop students’ digital skills through the Ericsson Educate platform, to enhance university students’
skills and prepare them to work in the ICT sector.

Renewing Orange Jordan’s agreement with Yarmouk University for the sixth consecutive year, under which it continues its support and
sponsorship of the Orange Yarmouk Innovation Lab (OYIL) and launching new training cohorts there.



The company continued to develop its Orange Money e-wallet and enhanced its services, to improve the ease and safety of all users’
experiences, and in response to their various needs. The company’s e-wallet witnessed a noticeable increase in service beneficiaries, and
expanded its work in cooperation with many partners, including:
Offering donation option to Tkiyet Um Ali, to provide sustainable support to families living below the food poverty line, and to the Hayat
Education Fund, to support underprivileged students and fund its various programs, in addition to other charities and civil institutions.
Partnership with ION, the largest network for charging electric cars in the Kingdom, enabling ION subscribers to recharge their balance
through the e-wallet.
Partnership with “Jeeny” to enable its drivers to purchase vouchers through the e-wallet application.
Launching a campaign that gave e-wallet users from all networks the opportunity to win valuable prizes.

‘) [ ::' ﬁ“i:\[_ zz ﬂ;ﬂ;le%e

Signing an agreement with Princess Sumaya University for Technology, allowing students to benefit from the Coding School programs,
one of the initiatives under Orange Digital Center.

The graduation of 50 students from the Orange Coding Academy’s second cohort and
launching the third cohort.

Establishing Orange Fablab, in partnership with Luminus Shamal Start with GIZ support
under the Orange Digital Center Project, at the Orange Digital Village and the graduation
of the Fab Lab’s first and second cohorts.

The graduation of the Mobile FablLab students, in partnership with Luminus, in Mafraq,
Jerash, and Ajloun, and launching the training in Zarga.

Providing free online training specialized in coding for 40 children through Coding
Academy by Orange, on the International Day of Young Inventors, in partnership with
Hello World Kids.

Orange Jordan provides its business and enterprise sector customers with the most advanced, integrated digital services in the Kingdom.
The company has earned their confidence as a real enabler for their various operations, which contributed to developing relations in various
sectors through extended strategic partnerships, for example:
Signing an agreement with the Bank ABC in Jordan to provide the bank with mobile lines and 4G internet, to be offered as a gift to the
bank’s customers in its housing loan campaign.
Signing two cooperation agreements with Agaba Special Economic Authority, under which Orange will supply and operate the
authority’s internet network.
Abdali Hospital adopting the Virtual Desktop Infrastructure (VDI) business solutions from Orange Jordan and PROTECH Company, to
enhance operational efficiency and patient care.
Signing an agreement with Al-Hussein Technical University, whereby Orange Jordan, in cooperation with Fortinet, will provide the
university with a set of solutions and devices that guarantee the highest levels of data and cyber security.
Signing a partnership agreement with Greater Madaba Municipality, under which Orange will establish and extend its home and
business fiber networks and provide the governorate’s regions with fast, reliable, and high-quality internet services.
Renewing the landlines agreement with the Jordanian Armed Forces- Arab Army.
Signing a strategic agreement with Centro Hotel to provide it with integrated ICT services.
Signing an agreement with Irbid Electricity Company, whereby Orange Jordan will provide smart electricity meters that will be linked to
Irbid Electricity Center, to cover areas in Irbid, Jerash, Ajloun and Mafrag.

Orange Jordan launched many campaigns in the year 2021, to offer the best experience for users in line with its leading position, including:

Launching campaigns with special discounts and offers and expanding the company’s range of mobile devices, tablets and accessories,
in addition to enriching mobile offerings for Youth through YO platform and also for the army and public defense.

Launching new internet offers to continue providing high-speed and efficient internet across the Kingdom, including the back-to-school
campaigns, and enhancing internet user experiences through partnership, including launching the first challenge at the Orange Gaming
Hub with our partner, FATE Esports.

puls Orange gs ol J

Enhancing Orange internet networks with the advanced 4G+ technology in Mafraq governorate, and enhancing mobile networks
in Amman and Ajloun, as well as significantly improving internet and connectivity for online games with our partner, Subspace. The
company also opened its first smart shop in Irbid governorate. The company received Customer Operations Performance Centre
(COPC) certificates, the highest global recognition for customer service, for the second consecutive year.
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Smart Life Solutions
1 Launching smart solutions, such as the external wireless camera, smart doorbell, and smart bulb, to give users peace of mind and the
ability to check in on their families.
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Internal Environment and Team

Orange Jordan considers its employees the foundation of its success, the company is constantly working on developing their practical and

academic capabilities and enhancing the work environment, through:

1 Obtaining the Top Employer Certificate for the sixth consecutive year, awarded by the Top Employer Institute.

1 Continuous development of its human resources by providing the latest resources and advanced training tools to become the next
leaders of the digital era.

[ In support of women and their roles in the economy, Orange Jordan signed the Women’s Empowerment Principles (WEPs), an
initiative by the UN Global Compact and UN Women offering guidance to businesses on how to promote gender equality and women’s
empowerment in the workplace, marketplace, and community.

1 Facilitating employees’ access to the COVID vaccine at the training center in Na’our, in coordination with the Ministry of Health and the
National Center for Security and Crisis Management, and under the supervision of the company’s medical staff. The vaccine was also
accessible to business partners and employees’ families.
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Confirmation
1. The Board of Directors confirms that there are no substantial matters which may affect the continuation of the company in the next
fiscal year.

2. The Board of Directors confirms its responsibility for the preparation of the financial statements and the provision of an effective control
system in the company.

Chairman of the Board Vice Chairman Member of the Board

H.E. Dr. Shabib Ammari Mrs. Mireille El Helou Mr. Jérbme Hénique

Member of the Board Member of the Board Member of the Board

Mr. Bisher Jardaneh Mr. Hisham Khraisat Mr. Abdallah Abu Jamous
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Member of the Board

Mrs. Dorothée Vignalou

3. We, the undersigned below, confirm the accuracy and completion of the information and statements set out in the report.
Deputy Chief Executive Officer Chief

Chairman of the Board Chief Executive Officer

Financial Officer

H.E. Dr. Shabib Ammari Mr. Thierry Marigny Mr. Raslan Deiranieh
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Governance Report

Digital Education

We offer beneficiaries of our free programs, especially youth, the opportunity to acquire
digital skills necessary to enter the labor market. These programs focus on practical and
interactive training to enhance employment opportunities, including free courses
available at Coding Academy by Orange and the'FabLab.
\
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Governance Report

We are pleased to present to you the Corporate Governance Report for 2021, which summarizes the information and details regarding
the implementation of the Corporate Governance Rules and Regulations in accordance with the provisions of Article (17) of the Listed
Corporate Shareholding Companies’ Regulations of 2017, issued by the Jordan Securities Commission.

Legal
Joint Investment Telecommunications Co. represented by: enﬁty
Chairman of the
H.E. Dr. Shabib Ammari (Attended all mestings). rman
Board of Directors
Mr. Taieb Belkahia (Attended all meetings until being replaced in his : ,
, : ; Vice-Chairman
capacity as a member on 19/4/2021 by Mr. Anis Hamdani).
Mrs. Mireille El Helou (Since her appointment on 17/10/2021 has : :
: Vice-Chairman
attended all meetings).
Mr. Jérébme Hénique (Attended Three meetings and was absent from Member of the
the second, fourth, and sixth meetings ). Board of Directors
Member of the
Mrs. Dorothée Vignalou (Att Il i .
rs. Dorothée Vignalou (Attended all meetings) Board of Directors
Mr. Anis Hamdani (Since his appointment on 19/4/2021, he attended Member of the
all meetings until replaced on 17/10/2021 by Mrs. Mireille El Helou). Board of Directors
Legal
Social Security Corporation Represented by: g
entity
Member of the
Mr. Bisher Jardaneh (Attended all meetings). ) Invest Bank
Board of Directors
Member of the
Mr. Abdallah Abu Jamous (Attended all meetings). )
Board of Directors
Government of the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan/ Jordanian Armed Legal
Forces represented by entity

Brigadier General Dr. Engineer Hisham Khraisat (Attended all meetings).

All the board members are non-executive
Number of Board meetings during 2021 (6).

Member of the
Board of Directors



Mr. Thierry Marigny

Mr. Raslan Deiranieh
Mr. Sami Smeirat

Mr. Waleed Al Doulat
Dr. Ibrahim Harb

Mrs. Naila Al Dawoud
Mr. Samer Al Haj

Mr. Jallale Bassou

Mr. Wilfried Yver

Mrs. Rana Al Dababneh

Audit Committee

Chief Executive Officer of Orange Jordan

Deputy Chief Executive Officer/Chief Financial and Strategy Officer

Chief Enterprise Officer

Chief Wholesale Officer/Chief Information Technology and Networks Officer

Chief Legal, Regulatory, Sourcing and Supply Chain Officer/ Chief Human Resources Officer
Chief Consumer Market Officer

Chief Consumer Sales Officer

Deputy Chief Information Technology and Networks Officer

Chief Digital, Data, Innovation & Money Officer

Deputy Chief PR, CSR, and Corporate Communication Officer (Effective 7/2021)

Remuneration and Nomination Committee

Corporate Governance Committee

Risk Management Committee

Mr. Taieb
Belkahia
(Chairman)

Mrs. Dorothée
Vignalou
(Chairman)

Mr. Abdallah
Abu Jamous

Mr. Anis
Hamdani

Mrs. Mireille El
Helou

Mr. Taieb Belkahia currently is the EVP of MENA and the General Secretary of Legal Affairs, Regulation & Synergy, PMO,
and Operational Synergies at Orange Morocco since May 2005 till now. He held the position of Director of Legal Affairs
from Nov. 2001 to May 2005 at MEDI TELECOM (Orange Morocco). Prior to that Mr. Belkahia was the Director of the
Legal Department from Feb. 1998 to Nov. 2001 at ABN Amro Bank (Morocco).

Mr. Taieb earned his Diploma from the Institute of Higher Management Studies HEM Cycle in 1992 and the Diploma
from the Toulouse Notary School in 1987.

Mr. Taieb Belkahia was replaced by Mr. Anis Hamdani on 19/4/2021.

Mrs. Dorothée Vignalou is currently a member of the Board of Directors of Orange Jordan and the Deputy Chief
Financial Officer of Orange Middle East and Africa. Prior to that, she was the Head of Central Controlling of Orange
Business Services from Jan. 2014 — March 2018. She was the Head of Controlling Solutions and Referential at Orange
Group Finance from Sept. 2003 - Dec. 2013. She previously held the position of a Consultant then Project Manager at
France Telecom Finance Division from Sept. 1994 - Aug. 2003. Mrs. Vignalou graduated from Sciences Po Paris with a
Master’s degree in Economics & Finance Section in 1993.

Mr. Abdallah Abu Jamous is a member of the Board of Directors of Jordan Telecom Group - Orange since August 2017.
Currently, he serves as Director of the Strategic Planning Department at the Social Security Corporation. He previously
occupied the Human Resources Director post at the Social Security Corporation, and prior to that, he held the position
of the Director of Strategic Planning Department.

Mr. Abdallah Abu Jamous holds a master’s degree with honor in Management Information Systems from Al Balga
Applied University, and a bachelor’s degree in accounting from Yarmouk University. Additionally, he earned several
professional certificates, including Certified Project Management Professional Certification (PMP), Certified Risk
Management Professional Certification (PMI - RMP) from the American Project Management Institute PMI, Certified
Strategic Planner (CSP) from the American Accredited Consultants Institute, and Quality Assessment Certification
(EFQM Assessor) from the European Organization for Quality Management.

Mr. Abu Jamous was named as the Best Employee in the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan for the year 2012 (The Best
Employee Award issued from the Civil Service Bureau).

With an experience of over 20 years in Telecommunications Management, Anis Hamdani is Chief Programs and
Transformation Officer of Orange France in the Great South East Region. His position started on October 1st, 2021,
following 8 years as VP Governance and Performance covering the Middle East Region (Egypt, Jordan, Lebanon, and
Irag).

Anis joined the Group in 2011, as Strategic Planning Director, before joining the Middle East and North Africa region
at Orange in 2013, where he was also in charge, in parallel of the successful acquisition and post-merger integration
of Airtel Burkina Faso and Sierra Leone. During his position as VP Governance and Performance, Anis sat at the
board of Directors of Mobinil for Telecommunication (now Orange Egypt), Orange Data, Orange Jordan and Sodetel
companies and managed several multicultural transversal teams in various projects, including 4G launch, rebranding
and transformation or Orange Egypt.

Previously, he held several managerial positions within Etisalat Group based in the UAE in Strategic Marketing/business
development, and had an extensive Strategy and Operational consultant career as a Senior Associate in Olivier Wyman
in Dubai and Cap Gemini Consulting in Paris and Boston, working exclusively for Telecommunications Operators across
the globe on various projects covering strategy, transformation, products launch, organization restructuring, business
planning or new mobile operators launch project management.

Anis has a master’s degree in International Business from Sciences Po Paris and holds a double master’s degree in
Management (with Finance specialization) and Telecommunications (with an IT specialization) from the Institut National
des Telecommunication / Paris 9 — Dauphine University.

Mr. Anis Hamdani was replaced by Mrs. Mireille El Helou on 17/10/2021.

Mrs. Mireille El Helou has a globe-spanning history of working in the ICT industry.

She has worked in different positions during her 20 years at the Orange Group, including Director of Sourcing and
Supply Chain Transformation between 2007 and 2010, Director of Orange Middle East and Africa Sourcing & Supply
Chain between 2010 and 2013 and Chief Business Market Officer and acting CEO of Orange Telkom Kenya between
2013 and 2016.

From 2016 to 2019, she was the General Manager of Orange Réunion Mayotte. She led the telco operations with a
team of nearly 1,000 employees, launching the best 4G network, achieving the high-speed FTTH network leadership
and spearheading the digital transformation.

More recently, she was the CEO of Orange Silicon Valley, leading a multi-disciplinary team who leverage a unique
understanding of the local US innovation ecosystem and market to inform the strategy and business of the Orange
Group.

Prior to joining Orange, Mireille worked in sales and marketing for more than nine years. She holds a Mechanical
Engineering degree from the American University of Beirut.

Mireille was appointed Senior Vice President MENA and Safety at Orange Middle East and Africa on September 1, 2021.

Number of meetings of the Audit Committee during 2021: (4).
Number of meetings of the Audit Committee during 2021 with External Auditors: (4).



Mr. Bisher Jardaneh: Attended all meetings.

Br. Gen. Dr. Engineer Hisham Khraisat: Attended all meetings.

Mr. Taieb Belkahia: Attended all meetings during his membership in the Committee.
Mr. Anis Hamdani: Attended all meetings during his membership in the Committee.
Mrs. Mireille El Helou: Appointed on 28/10/2021

Number of meetings of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee during 2021: (2).

Mr. Taieb Belkahia: Attended all meetings during his membership in the Committee.

Mr. Anis Hamdani.: Attended all meetings during his membership in the Committee. - - -
Mr. Bisher Jardaneh: Attended all mestings. 0 n So I a e I n a n C I a

Br. Gen. Dr. Engineer Hisham Khraisat: Attended all meetings.

Mrs. Mireille El Helou: Appointed on 28/10/2021 St at e m e n t S

Number of meetings of the Corporate Governance Committee during 2021: (2).

Mr. Abdallah Abu Jamous: Attended all meetings.

Mr. Taieb Belkahia: Attended all meetings during his membership in the Committee.
Mrs. Dorothée Vignalou: Attended all meetings.

Mr. Anis Hamdani: Attended all meetings during his membership in the Committee.
Mrs. Mireille El Helou: Appointed on 28/10/2021

Number of meetings of the Risks Management Committee during 2021: (2).

Chairman of the Board
H.E.Dr. Shabib Ammari
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Entrepreneurship

Orange Jordan believes that entrepreneurship is the key to driving —_L -

economic and sustainable development; we continue to pave the way for
startups in the Kingdom by providing mentorship and support for growth
and expansion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
AM/ 20268-002-003

To the Shareholders
Jordan Telecommunications Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jordan Telecommunications Company (the
“Company”), and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2021, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”) together with the other ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the Kingdom of Jordan, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Deloitte.

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Revenue recognition and related IT systems

The Group reported revenue of JD 333 million for
the year 2021 (2020: JD 317 million) from
telecommunication and related activities.

We focused on this area of the audit as there is an
inherent risk related to the accuracy and
completeness of revenue recognised given the
complexity of the systems and changing mix of
business products and services.

Due to the estimates made, complexities involved
and judgments applied in the revenue process
and the degree of complexity of IT systems and
processes used, we have considered this matter
as a key audit matter.

The Group’s accounting policies relating to
revenue recognition are presented in note 3 and
details about the Group’s revenue are disclosed
in notes 5 and 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Our audit approach included a combination of test of
controls and substantive procedures which included,
inter alia, the following:

Obtaining an understanding of the significant
revenue processes including performance of an
end to end walkthrough of the revenue process
and identifying the relevant controls (including IT
systems, interfaces-and reports related to billing
and revenue process);

Evaluating the design and testing the
implementation and operating effectiveness of
the relevant controls;

involving our IT specialist to test IT general
controls, covering pervasive IT risks around access
security, change management and network
operations;

performing data analysis and substantive
analytical procedures of significant revenue
streams;

performing specific procedures to test the
accuracy and completeness of adjustments
relzting to multiple element arrangements which
have the effect of grossing up certain revenue and
costs;

performing procedures to determine if the
revenue recognition criteria adopted for all major
revenue streams is appropriate and in accordance
with IFRSs; and

assessing the disclosures in the financial
statements relating to revenue against the
requirements of IFRSs.

Capitalisation and Useful economic life of
property and equipment and intangible assets
The Group has property, and equipment and

Million (2020: JD 452 Million) with total additions
of 1D 67 Million during 2021 {2020: JD 61 Million).

The useful life of the property and equipment and
intangible assets is based on management’s
technical assessment of factors, which requires
judgement to be applied, and accordingly
contains significant estimation uncertainty. The
useful life of PPE and intangible assets has a direct
impact on the amount of
depreciation/famortisation charged to profit or
loss. Consequently, we considered this to be a key
audit matter.

In making its assessment of the asset’s useful life,
management has assessed the useful life of the
PPE and intangible assets considering wvarious
factors such as utilisation period, maintenance
programs and normal wear and tear.

The accounting policy for property and
equipment and intangible assets is set out in note
3 and the related disclosures are set out in note 6
and note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Other Matters

In responding to the risks in these matters, Our audit
intangible assets with a carrying amount of ID 442  procedures included the following:

Understanding the business processes for
determining the useful life of property and
equipment and intangible asset and the recording
of additions and disposals.

Evaluating the design and implementation of
controls around the estimation of useful life of the
property and equipment and intangible assets
including the controls over the additions and
disposals process;

We have evaluated the appropriateness of
capitalization policies. In performing these
procedures, we take into consideration business
and practice in telecoms industry in addition to
the Group policies and procedures.

We tested the material additions during the year
through assessing the nature of costs incurred and
testing the amounts recorded and assessing
whether the description of the expenditure met
capitalization criteria.

We assessed the overall presentation, structure
and content of the related disclosures of property
and equipment and intangible assets against the
requirements of IFRSs

1. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 were audited by
another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on March 28, 2021

2. The accompanying consolidated financial statements are a translation of the original consolidated
financial statements which are in Arabic language, to which reference should be made.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the

date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* QObtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Deloitte.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
The Group maintains proper accounting records duly organized and in line with(t
consolidated financial statements. We recommend that the General Assemb
approve these consolidated financial statements.

ccompanying
y of 5

Amman — Jordan ordan

March 29, 2022

Deloitte & Touche (M.E.)
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JORDAN TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

JORDAN TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ﬁiﬁ-E(.:rusrrent Assets Net revenues 5&23.a 333,464,646 317,066,340
Property and equipment 6 261,089,827 248,960,529 Direct operating cost (119,004,870) (123,838,944)
Intangible assets 7 181,168,572 203,324,050 Gross margin 214,459,776 193,227,396
Right-of-use assets 8.a 35,743,046 44,061,037
FiereiEio® Sne gl 2EsEis & 36,344,076 38,456,419 Administrative expenses (26,725,640) (27,891,896)
EZ?Sr::;Tazziz:;e'wb'es e — 3,3@?8@ Seling and distribution expenses (41,696,124) (37,046,091)
T e 23.b 682,732 778,775 Government revenue share 24 (4,592,106) (4,116,342)
Total Non-Current Assets 518,645,916 539,339,386 Business support fees and brand fees 25 (7,811,925 (7,460,437)
Current Assets Expected credit losses 12&13 (994,755) (1,565,136)
Inventories " 10,159,951 6,533,060 Depreciation of property and equipment 6 (53,083,268) (51,536,013)
Trade receivables and other current assets 12 109,429,998 95,209,843 Amortization of intangible assets 7 (24,134,582) (23,822,496)
Balances due from telecom operators 18 2,446,234 2,258,520 Depreciation of right-of-use assets 8.4 (6,544.041) (4,607.530)
Contract assets 23.b 2,448,638 2,333,682 ’ o U
Cash and short-term deposits 14 57,327,137 44,730,808 Depreciation of renewable energy assets 9 (2,112,343) (2,112,343)
Total Current Assets 181,811,958 151,065,913 Operating profit 46,764,992 33,069,112
TOTAL ASSETS 700,457,874 690,405,299

Net foreign currency exchange differences 186,768 (614,290)
e R RS AR I EANDIE AR EINIES Leases interest expense 8.b (2,443,427) (2,452,937)
Shareholders’ Equity -
Paid in capital 15 187,500,000 187,500,000 Finance cost of renewable energy assets 9 (8,007,594) (2,609,701)
Statutory reserve 16 62,500,000 62,500,000 Finance costs of Bank’s loans (4,897,836) (5,5083,633)
Retained earnings 17 31,358,069 23,083,778 Finance cost of telecommunications licenses 18 (1,775,893) (1,775,893)
Total Shareholders’ Equity 281,358,069 273,983,778 Finance income 1,431,922 956,465
Liabilities Gain on disposal of property and equipment 1,955,374 4,277,154
o cunenabiitios Profit before Income Tax 38,214,306 25,346,277
Telecommunications license payable 18 47,940,704 46,164,811
Interest-bearing loans 19 27,696,332 41,312,631 Imee T 2 21 penss 10 fzlesrs) asdll
Lease liabilities 8.b 32,895,496 35,305,297 Profit for the year 26,124,291 17,502,121
Renewable energy liability 9 34,071,756 36,699,915 Add: Other comprehensive income - -
Contract liabilities 23.c 19,098 224,737 Total comprehensive income for the year 26,124,291 17,502,121
Employees’ end of service benefits 20 458,966 482,008
Total Non.-CL.n:r-ent Liabilities 143,082,352 160,189,399 Earnings per share JD/Fils JD/Fils
Current Liabilities - - . . -
Orange Money - units in circulation - 8,936,368 3,441,683 Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to equity holders of %6 0.139 0.093
Trade payables and other current liabilities 20 158,570,223 148,792,989 WS Pl
Balances due to telecom operators 13 18,445,529 24,740,731 THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
Income tax payable 10.b 12,548,210 9,789,625 SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE AUDIT REPORT.
Current portion of interest-bearing loans 19 13,493,719 13,482,377
Due to banks 14 43,112,473 38,717,495
Lease liabilities 8.b 5,749,642 6,511,761
Renewable energy liability 9 4,498,282 3,098,575
Contract liabilities 23.c 10,575,894 7,615,373
Employees’ end of service benefits 20 87,113 41,513
Total Current Liabilities 276,017,453 256,232,122
TOTAL LIABILITIES 419,099,805 416,421,521
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 700,457,874 690,405,299

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND

SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE AUDIT REPORT.



JORDAN TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Balance at January 1, 2021

Total comprehensive income

Dividends 17
Balance at December 31, 2021

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Balance at January 1, 2020

Total comprehensive income

Dividends 17
Balance at December 31, 2020

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND

187,500,000

187,500,000

187,500,000

187,500,000

SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE AUDIT REPORT.

62,500,000

62,500,000

62,500,000

62,500,000

23,983,778
26,124,291
(18,750,000)
31,358,069

21,481,657
17,502,121
(15,000,000)
23,983,778

273,983,778

26,124,291
(18,750,000)
281,358,069

271,481,657

17,502,121
(15,000,000)
273,983,778

JORDAN TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit before income tax

Adjustments for:

Finance costs on Bank’s loans

Finance cost of telecommunications licenses
Finance income

Leases interest expense

Finance cost of renewable energy assets
Provision for expected credit losses
Provision for slow-moving inventories
Depreciation of property and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Depreciation of renewable energy assets
Employees’ end of service benefits

Gain from sale of properties and equipment

Cash Flows from Operations before Changes in Working Capital

Decrease (increase) in assets:

Contract assets

Inventories

Trade receivables and other current assets
Balances due from telecom operators
(Decrease) increase in liabilities:

Trade payables and other current liabilities
Balances due to telecom operators

Contract liabilities

Employees’ end of service paid

Cash Flows from Operating Activities before Income Tax Paid
Income tax paid

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
(Purchase) of properties and equipment
(Purchase) of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Finance income received

Net Cash Flows (used in) Investing Activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Repayment of interest-bearing loans

Payments on capital reduction

Finance costs paid

Payments of renewable energy liability

Dividends paid

Payments of lease liabilities

Net Cash Flows (used in) Financing Activities

Net Increase in cash and cash equivalent
Net foreign currency exchange difference
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND

SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE AUDIT REPORT.
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8.b

12&13
11

8.a

20

20

10.b

8.b

14

38,214,306

4,897,836
1,775,893
(1,431,922)
2,443,427
3,007,594
994,755
100,000
53,083,268
24,134,582
6,544,041
2,112,343
81,157
(1,955,374)
134,001,906

(18,913)
(12,244,856)
(14,878,560)

(187,714)

13,366,947
(6,295,202)
2,754,882
(58,599)
116,439,891
(8,471,133)
107,968,758

(57,019,786)
(1,979,104)
2,280,559
1,236,485
(55,481,846)

(13,467,724)
(62,525
(4,897,836
(4,236,046
(19,003,133
(7,975,749)
(49,643,013)

)
)
)
)

2,843,899
64,254
939,393
3,847,546

25,346,277

5,503,633
1,775,893
(956,465)
2,452,937
2,609,701
1,565,136
100,000
51,536,013
23,822,496
4,607,530
2,112,343
70,259
(4,277,154)
116,268,599

(310,620)
(6,199,570)
(6,279,851)

3,255,061

(6,472,420)
(1,292,962)

468,515

(66,585)
99,370,167
(6,168,710)
93,201,457

(49,796,743)
(4,470,545)
4,730,445
884,177
(48,652,666)

(8,914,927)
(10,712)
(5,503,633)
(4,096,387)
(14,794,418)
(7,724,914)
(41,044,991)

3,503,800
198,814
(2,763,221)
939,393



JORDAN TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Jordan Telecommunications Company (the “Company”) was established as a Public Shareholding Company on October 8, 1996, and
adopted the Orange brand in 2007. The Company’s authorized and paid in capital amounted to JD 187,500,000 divided into 187,500,000
shares. The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”).

The principal activities of the Group comprise introduction of a variety of telecommunication, internet, data and mobile payment services.
These services include among other services fixed line services, prepaid, and postpaid mobile services, ADSL, fiber optics internet
services, mobile payment services and establishing non-profitable academic centers and initiatives.

The Company is 51% owned by The Joint Investments Telecommunications Company (JIT CO.) a fully owned subsidiary of Orange Group
(France). Moreover, Jordanian Social Security Corporation and Noor Financial Investment own 28.88% and 9.3% of the Company’s issued
shares, respectively.

The Group’s head offices are located in Abdali, the Boulevard, Amman - Jordan.

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on February 1, 2022.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Jordanian Dinars which represents the functional currency of the Group.

The directors have, at the time of approving the consolidated financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the Group have adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The same accounting policies, presentation and methods of computation have been followed in these consolidated financial statements
as were applied in the preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020, except for
the effect of what is stated in Note (3.1.a).

The accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent with those used in the previous
year except for the following new and amended IASB Standards during the year.

The following new and revised IFRSs, which became effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021, have been
adopted in these consolidated financial statements. The application of these revised IFRSs has not had any material impact on the
amounts reported for the current and prior years but may affect the accounting for future transactions or arrangements.

In the prior year, the Group adopted the Phase 1 amendments Interest Rate Benchmark Reform—Amendments to IFRS 9/IAS 39 and
IFRS 7. These amendments modify specific hedge accounting requirements to allow hedge accounting to continue for affected hedges
during the period of uncertainty before the hedged items or hedging instruments are amended as a result of the interest rate benchmark
reform.

In the current year, the Group adopted the Phase 2 amendments Interest Rate Benchmark Reform—Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS
7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16. Adopting these amendments enables the Group to reflect the effects of transitioning from interbank offered rates
(IBOR) to alternative benchmark interest rates (also referred to as ‘risk-free rates’ or RFRs) without giving rise to accounting impacts that
would not provide useful information to users of financial statements.

The amendments also introduce new disclosure requirements to IFRS 7 for hedging relationships that are subject to the exceptions
introduced by the amendments to IFRS 9.

There was no material impact on the amounts reported for the current year for both the Phase 1 and Phase 2 amendments as the group
does not have material financial instruments linked to IBOR.

In the prior year, the Group early adopted COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16) that provided practical relief to
lessees in accounting for rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19, by introducing a practical expedient to IFRS
16. This practical expedient was available to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affected payments originally due
on or before June 30, 2021.

In March 2021, the Board issued COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021 (Amendment to IFRS 16) that extends the
practical expedient to apply to reduction in lease payments originally due on or before June 30, 2022.

The practical expedient permits a lessee to elect not to assess whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification. A
lessee that makes this election shall account for any change in lease payments resulting from the COVID-19-related rent concession
applying IFRS 16 as if the change were not a lease modification

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19 and only if all of the following
conditions are met:
The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change
Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022 (a rent concession meets this condition
if it results in reduced lease payments on or before 30 June 2022 and increased lease payments that extend beyond 30 June 2022)
There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease

Their adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these consolidated financial statements

as the Group did not have any leases impacted by the amendment.

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRS Standards that
have been issued but are not yet effective:



IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (including the June 2020 amendments to IFRS 17)
IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of insurance contracts and supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts.

IFRS 17 outlines a general model, which is modified for insurance contracts with direct
participation features, described as the variable fee approach. The general model is simplified
if certain criteria are met by measuring the liability for remaining coverage using the premium
allocation approach.

The general model uses current assumptions to estimate the amount, timing and uncertainty
of future cash flows and it explicitly measures the cost of that uncertainty. It takes into account
market interest rates and the impact of policyholders’ options and guarantees.

In June 2020, the Board issued Amendments to IFRS 17 to address concerns and
implementation challenges that were identified after IFRS 17 was published. The amendments
defer the date of initial application of IFRS 17 (incorporating the amendments) to annual
reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. At the same time, the Board issued
Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9 (Amendments to IFRS 4) that
extends the fixed expiry date of the temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 in IFRS 4 to
annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023.

For the purpose of the transition requirements, the date of initial application is the start of the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the Standard, and the transition date is
the beginning of the period immediately preceding the date of initial application.
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with situations where there is a sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments
state that gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not
contain a business in a transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for
using the equity method, are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses
resulting from the remeasurement of investments retained in any former subsidiary (that has
become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair
value are recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these amendments may have
an impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in future periods should such
transactions arise.

Amendments to IAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The amendments to IAS 1 affect only the presentation of liabilities as current or non-current
in the statement of financial position and not the amount or timing of recognition of any asset,
liability, income or expenses, or the information disclosed about those items.

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or noncurrent is based
on rights that are in existence at the end of the reporting period, specify that classification is
unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement
of a liability, explain that rights are in existence if covenants are complied with at the end of
the reporting period, and introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets or services.

The  amendments are applied
retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2023,
unless impracticable, in which case the
modified retrospective approach or the
fair value approach is applied.

The effective date is yet to be set. Earlier
application is permitted.

The  amendments are applied
retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2023,
with early application permitted.

Amendments to IFRS 3 - Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The amendments update IFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead
of the 1989 Framework. They also add to IFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within the
scope of IAS 37, an acquirer applies IAS 37 to determine whether at the acquisition date a
present obligation exists as a result of past events. For a levy that would be within the scope
of IFRIC 21 Levies, the acquirer applies IFRIC 21 to determine whether the obligating event
that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by the acquisition date.

Finally, the amendments add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise
contingent assets acquired in a business combination.

Amendments to IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment—Proceeds before Intended
Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced before that asset is available for use, i.e. proceeds
while bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Consequently, an entity recognises such
sales proceeds and related costs in profit or loss. The entity measures the cost of those items
in accordance with IAS 2 Inventories.

The amendments also clarify the meaning of ‘testing whether an asset is functioning properly.
IAS 16 now specifies this as assessing whether the technical and physical performance of the
asset is such that it is capable of being used in the production or supply of goods or services,
for rental to others, or for administrative purposes.

If not presented separately in the statement of comprehensive income, the financial statements
shall disclose the amounts of proceeds and cost included in profit or loss that relate to items
produced that are not an output of the entity’s ordinary activities, and which line item(s) in the
statement of comprehensive income include(s) such proceeds and cost.

The amendments are applied retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and
equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management on or after the beginning of the earliest
period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.

The entity shall recognise the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as
appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period presented.

Amendments to IAS 37 - Onerous Contracts—Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfiling” a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate
directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract consist of both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour or materials) and an allocation
of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation
of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract).

The amendments apply to contracts for which the entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments.
Comparatives are not restated. Instead, the entity shall recognise the cumulative effect
of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial application.

The amendments are effective for
business combinations for which the
date of acquisition is on or after the
beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after January 1, 2022.
Early application is permitted if an
entity also applies all other updated
references.

January 1, 2022, with early application
permitted.

January 1, 2022, with early application
permitted.



IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

The amendment provides additional relief to a subsidiary which becomes a first-time adopter
later than its parent in respect of accounting for cumulative translation differences. As a result
of the amendment, a subsidiary that uses the exemption in IFRS 1:D16 (a) can now also elect
to measure cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations at the carrying amount
that would be included in the parent’s consolidated financial statements, based on the
parent’s date of transition to IFRS Standards, if no adjustments were made for consolidation
procedures and for the effects of the business combination in which the parent acquired
the subsidiary. A similar election is available to an associate or joint venture that uses the
exemption in IFRS 1:D16 (a).

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that in applying the ‘10 per cent’ test to assess whether to
derecognise a financial liability, an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity
(the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender
on the other’s behalf.

The amendment is applied prospectively to modifications and exchanges that occur on or
after the date the entity first applies the amendment.

IFRS 16 Leases

The amendment removes the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements.

IAS 41 Agriculture

The amendment removes the requirement in IAS 41 for entities to exclude cash flows for
taxation when measuring fair value. This aligns the fair value measurement in IAS 41 with the
requirements of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement to use internally consistent cash flows and
discount rates and enables preparers to determine whether to use pretax or post-tax cash
flows and discount rates for the most appropriate fair value measurement.

The amendment is applied prospectively, i.e. for fair value measurements on or after the date
an entity initially applies the amendment.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
- Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments change the requirements in IAS 1 with regard to disclosure of accounting
policies. The amendments replace all instances of the term ‘significant accounting policies’
with ‘material accounting policy information’. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.

The supporting paragraphs in IAS 1 are also amended to clarify that accounting policy
information that relates to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions is immaterial and
need not be disclosed. Accounting policy information may be material because of the nature
of the related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information relating to material transactions, other events
or conditions is itself material.

The Board has also developed guidance and examples to explain and demonstrate the
application of the ‘four-step materiality process’ described in IFRS Practice Statement 2.

January 1, 2022, with early application
permitted.

The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1,
2022, with early application permitted.

As the amendment to IFRS 16 only
regards an illustrative example, no
effective date is stated.

January 1, 2022, with early application
permitted.

January 1, 2023, with earlier application
permitted and are applied prospectively.

The amendments to IFRS Practice
Statement 2 do not contain an effective
date or transition requirements.

Amendments to IAS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a definition of
accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts
in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.

The definition of a change in accounting estimates was deleted. However, the Board retained
the concept of changes in accounting estimates in the Standard with the following clarifications:
A change in accounting estimate that results from new information or new developments
is not the correction of an error
The effects of a change in an input or a measurement technique used to develop an
accounting estimate are changes in accounting estimates if they do not result from the
correction of prior period errors

The Board added two examples (Examples 4-5) to the Guidance on implementing IAS 8,
which accompanies the Standard. The Board has deleted one example (Example 3) as it
could cause confusion in light of the amendments.

Amendments to IAS 12 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

The amendments introduce a further exception from the initial recognition exemption. Under
the amendments, an entity does not apply the initial recognition exemption for transactions
that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Depending on the applicable tax law, equal taxable and deductible temporary differences
may arise on initial recognition of an asset and liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit. For example, this may arise
upon recognition of a lease liability and the corresponding right-of-use asset applying IFRS 16
at the commencement date of a lease.

Following the amendments to IAS 12, an entity is required to recognise the related deferred
tax asset and liability, with the recognition of any deferred tax asset being subject to the
recoverability criteria in IAS 12.

The Board also adds an illustrative example to IAS 12 that explains how the amendments are
applied.

The amendments apply to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
an entity recognises:
A deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised) and a deferred tax
liability for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with:
- Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
- Decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities and the corresponding amounts
recognised as part of the cost of the related asset

The cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at that date.

January 1, 2023, with earlier application
permitted

January 1, 2023, with earlier application
permitted

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as and when they are applicable and adoption of these new standards, interpretations and amendments, may have no material

impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group in the period of initial application.



The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries) made up to December 31, each year. Control is achieved when the Company:

Has the power over the investee

Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee

Has the ability to use its power to affect its returns

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it considers that it has power over the investee when the
voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,
including:

The size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders

Potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant

activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control
of the subsidiary. Specifically, the results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in profit or loss from the date
the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All'intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between the members of the Group
are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity therein. Those interests of non-controlling
shareholders that are present ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets upon liquidation may initially
be measured at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Other non-controlling interests are initially measured at fair
value. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus
the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amount of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the noncontrolling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal recognised in profit or loss is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), less liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as required/
permitted by applicable IFRS Standards). The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IFRS 9 when applicable, or the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

The subsidiaries of the Group, included in the consolidated financial statements of Jordan Telecommunications Company which are all
incorporated in Jordan are as follows:

Petra Jordanian Mobile Telecommunications GSM Operator 70,000,000 100%

Jordan Data Communications Internet service provider (ISP) 750,000 100%

Dimension Company for Digital Development of Data Development of Renewable Energy Projects 220,000 100%*
Electronic Payment Services through Mobile

Petra Mobile Payment Services Company Phone ey l . I 2,000,000 100%™

Future Pioneers for Development and Initiatives Orange Foundation 15,000 100%**

* Jordan Telecommunications owned 51% from Dimension Company for Digital Development of Data and the remaining 49% is owned by
Petra Jor